
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

 

  

 

 

                      

                                                                               
   
 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, August 23, 2011 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
              
 
 9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

� August 16, 2011 
   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
Board of Equalization 
a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 103 
Commissioners 
b. Travel Approval Request 
c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137 
Facilities 
d.    Blanket Service Contract w/Cascade Fire Protection Co. 
Human Services 
e. Blanket Service Contract w/Sierra Electric, Inc. 
f. Blanket Service Contract w/Apollo Heating & Air Conditioning 
g. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0152-101, Dept. 000 
Juvenile 
h. Consolidated Contract Continuation w/State of WA, DSHS, Juvenile Rehabilitation Admin. 
i. Truancy Contract w/Kiona-Benton School District  
Public Works 
j. Franchise Authorization for Whitstran Heights Water Association 
k. Traffic Control Authorization on Grosscup Road 
Sheriff 
l. Authorization to Purchase Military/Marine Binoculars 
m. Authorization to Purchase Surefire Flashlight Kits with Holders 
n. Authorization to Purchase Insight Technologies Hand Held Thermal Scopes 
o. Adoption of Ordinance Relating to Fee Schedule; Rescinding Resolution 05-519 
p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 118 
q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120 
r. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121 
s. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121 
t. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0126-101, Dept. 000   

Leo Bowman 
District 1 
Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on highlighted area.



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 
commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

Agenda – Board of County Commissioners 
August 23, 2011 
Page Two 
 
 

u. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0126-101, Dept. 000 
Treasurer 
v.   Master Agreement w/Manatron, Inc. for Licensed Software, Hardware & Services 

 
9:05 AM Scheduled Business  
  
 Kennewick Irrigation District Presentation on Cost of Service Rate Study – Charles Freeman 
 
 Various Zoning Amendments – M Shuttleworth 
 

     Unscheduled Visitors  
   Board Assignment Update 

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
 Tuesday, August 16, 2011, 9:00 a.m. 
Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
 
Present: Chairman Leo Bowman 
  Commissioner James Beaver 
  Commissioner Shon Small  
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Personnel Manager Melina Wenner; Public Works Manager Steve 
Becken; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; County Engineer Malcolm Bowie; Treasurer 
Duane Davidson; Central Services Manager Randy Reid; Susan Walker, Valerie Smith, and 
Clark Posey, Planning Department. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of August 9, 2011 were approved.  
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “c”. 
Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Commissioners 

a. Interlocal Cooperation Agreement w/City of Richland Relating to Revitalization Area for  
      Industry, Science and Education 
b. Property Surplus and Authorization for Private Negotiation 

Facilities 
c. Authorization for Request for Proposals for OPT 022 Control System Upgrade 

 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:05 a.m.  
 



 - 2 - 

Public Hearings – Comprehensive Plan Amendments 
 
CPA 11-01 
 

 Ms. Walker said this was a request by Barker Ranch, LTD to change the land use designation 
from Rural Lands Five Acre (RL-5) to Open Space Conservation (OS-C).  She said the Planning 
Commission and Planning staff recommended approval.  
 
Testimony 
 
Michael Crowder, Barker Ranch manager, spoke in favor.  He also thanked Adam Fyall and 
Susan Walker for their help during the process.  He said he also wanted to discuss the proposed 
land swap (separate issue) and Chairman Bowman said that Mr. Fyall could bring back that issue 
and the appropriate time.   
 
As there was no one else present to testify, public testimony was closed.  
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve CPA 11-01 and adopt the Planning 
Commissions findings of fact.  Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 
 
CPA 11-02 
 
Requested by Public Works to add two proposed road projects (extension of Locust Grove Road 
between Clodfelter and Edwards and extension of Coffin Road between Nine Canyon and 
Meals).  She said the Planning Commission and Planning staff recommended approval.  
 
Malcolm Bowie said this completed the transportation mapping as adopted in the Six-Year Road 
program and agreed it contributed to upgrading the “farm to market roads”.   
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve CPA 11-02 and adopt the Planning 
Commission’s findings of fact.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion 
carried.   
 
CPA 11-04 
 
Ms. Walker said these were proposed housekeeping amendments to update and improve 
information in the plan and its maps. Ms. Walker also identified a few word changes and minor 
edits to the map since the last workshop. 
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 
 
MOTION: Commissioner Small moved to approve CPA 11-04 and adopt the Planning 
Commission recommendations and findings as their own.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and 
upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   



 - 3 - 

Preliminary Plat SUB 11-01 
 
Mr. Posey presented the proposed preliminary plat of Dove Ridge and said the Planning 
Commission recommended approval as presented with conditions.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the preliminary plat of Dove Ridge SUB 11-
01 and adopt the Planning Commission’s findings with conditions.  Commissioner Beaver 
seconded and upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   
 
Unscheduled Visitors 
 
Michael Crowder, Barker Ranch, discussed the trail connectivity with Barker Ranch and said 
they were still looking forward to the land swap with the City of Richland.  Mr. Fyall said 
originally there was going to be an agreement with the cities and he was not sure why it had not 
moved forward.  He suggested the Board send a letter to the cities.  The Board requested Mr. 
Fyall draft a letter and bring back a recommendation.  
 
Board Assignment Update 
 
Commissioner Small said he had been receiving a lot of positive feedback regarding 
departments, including a call thanking Mr. Posey and the Planning Department and a call 
thanking Steve Brown and Code Enforcement Department.  
 
Chairman Bowman said the County now had a brochure to hand out at the fair booth and thanked 
the county employees for their assistance. He also reported on the following:  Congressman 
Hastings’ new transportation staff person would be visiting the area on Wednesday and had 
requested a tour of Red Mountain; provided a draft list of projects proposed by the Council of 
Governments to be spent on RTPO money and asked the Board to review (he suggested they 
might want to consider starting a fund to be used for future projects); provided a draft of 
regional/state road improvements projects as proposed by the Local Good Roads Association for 
the Board to review and comment.  
 
Distinguished Budget Award 
 
Keith Mercer presented the plaque that Benton County received for “Distinguished Budget 
Award”.  Mr. Sparks said it showed that Benton County was taking care of its finances and the 
award would continue to assist with its bond rating.   
 
Claim for Damages 
 
CC 2011-22: Received on August 10, 2011 from Daniel Kingma 
CC 2011-23: Received on August 15, 2011 from Duane Travis 
 



 - 4 - 

Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 07/01/2011 
Warrant #: 37181-37432 
Total all funds: $5,554.21 
 
Check Date:  08/05/2011 
Warrant #: 232701-232817 
Direct Deposit #: 66050-66642 
Total all funds: $2,129,291.64 
 
Check Date:  08/05/2011 
Warrant #: 39380-39402 
Taxes #: 10111081-10111086 
Total all funds: $1,904,730.92 
 
Check Date: 08/12/2011 
Warrant #: 39555-39792 
Total all funds: $822,482.37 
 
Check Date: 08/15/2011 
Warrant #: 232818-232841 
Direct Deposit #: 66648-66848 
Total all funds: $114,908.72 
 
Check Date: 08/15/2011 
Taxes #: 10111087 
Total all funds: $32,265.16 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Resolutions 
 
11-520 Interlocal Cooperation Agreement w/City of Richland Relating to Revitalization 

Area for Industry, Science and Education 
11-521 Property Surplus and Authorization for Private Negotiation 
11-522 Authorization for Request for Proposals for OPT 022 Control System Upgrade 
11-523 Approval of CPA 11-01 – Barker Ranch Property 
11-524 Approval of CPA 11-02 – Public Works Dept. 
11-525 Approval of CPA 11-04 – Planning Staff 
11-526 Approval of Preliminary Plat Application of Dove Ridge; File SUB 11-01 



 - 5 - 

 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:50 
a.m.  
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



EXHIBIT A      BENTON COUNTY  RESOLUTION NO.   
LINE ITEM TRANSFERS 

 
DEPARTMENT: Board of Equalization       DEPARTMENT NO. 103   
 
FUND NAME: Current Expense        FUND NO. 0000-101    
 
TRANSFER FROM:       TRANSFER TO: 
 
BASE SUB 
(6 digit) 

LINE ITEM 
(4 digit) 

LINE ITEM  
NAME 

AMOUNT BASE SUB 
(6 digit) 

LINE ITEM 
(4 digit) 

LINE ITEM 
NAME 

AMOUNT 

514.240 1190 
 

Secretary $1,200.00 514.240 4301 Travel $1,200.00 

 
 

       

 
 

       

 
EXPLANATION: Due to a high volume of appeals these funds need to be transferred.      
                    
                     
 
Prepared by: Peggy Brown     Date:  8/10/11    
 
Approved  ( ) 
Denied  ( )      Date:       
 
         
         Chairman 
 
         
           Member 
 
         
           Member  
 
 

CurrentUser
Text Box
a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 103



 

RESOLUTION 
 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY,  WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS  WITHIN CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, 
DEPARTMENT NUMBER 103 
 
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit “A”, attached 
hereto. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CurrentUser
Text Box
b. Travel Approval Request





CurrentUser
Text Box
c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO:  

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

521.230 1146 Animal Control Manager $95,047 521.230 1181 Animal Control Officer III $61,779

521.230 2103 Medical Insurance $1,768

521.230 1905 Temporary Help $31,500

TOTAL $95,047 TOTAL $95,047

Explanation:

Prepared by: Keith Mercer Date:  16-Aug-2011

Approved � Denied � Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Line item transfer needed in order pay for downgrade in Animal Control Officer position and additional temporary help. 

Animal Control

Current Expense

137

0000-101



CurrentUser
Text Box
d. Blanket Service Contract w/Cascade Fire Protection Co.







CurrentUser
Text Box
e. Blanket Service Contract w/Sierra Electric, Inc.







CurrentUser
Text Box
f. Blanket Service Contract w/Apollo Heating & Air Conditioning









CurrentUser
Text Box
g. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0152-101, Dept. 000







CurrentUser
Text Box
h. Consolidated Contract Continuation w/State of WA, DSHS, Juvenile Rehabilitation Admin.









CurrentUser
Text Box
i. Truancy Contract w/Kiona-Benton School District







CurrentUser
Text Box
j. Franchise Authorization for Whitstran Heights Water Association







CurrentUser
Text Box
k. Traffic Control Authorization on Grosscup Road







CurrentUser
Text Box
l. Authorization to Purchase Military/Marine Binoculars





CurrentUser
Text Box
m. Authorization to Purchase Surefire Flashlight Kits with Holders





CurrentUser
Text Box
n. Authorization to Purchase Insight Technologies Hand Held Thermal Scopes





CurrentUser
Text Box
o. Adoption of Ordinance Relating to Fee Schedule; Rescinding Resolution 05-519









EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:
TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO:  

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)
521.100 2106 Uniform Laundry $4,550 521.100 2105 Uniforms $4,000

521.100 4114 Pre-employment Exams $550

TOTAL $4,550 TOTAL $4,550
Explanation:

Prepared by: Julie Thompson Date:  16-Aug-2011

Approved Denied Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Line item transfer needed to cover the cost of uniforms associated with completely outfitting new employees with the required uniforms.  Pre-
employment exam expense needed for a new hire.

Sheriff Administration

Current Expense

118

0000-101

CurrentUser
Text Box
p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 118



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Auditor; File, Sheriff J. Thompson

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, SHERIFF ADMINISTRATION
DEPARTMENT NUMBER 118.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that
2011 funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.



CurrentUser
Text Box
q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120







EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:
TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO:  

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)
521.210 1935 Holiday $99,295 521.932 3106 Operating Supplies $30,295

521.932 3501 Small Item - Equipment 19,000                
594.210 6401 Capital Outlay - Hardware 50,000                

TOTAL $99,295 TOTAL $99,295
Explanation:

Prepared by: Julie Thompson Date:  16-Aug-2011

Approved Denied Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Line Item transfer is needed to fund grant related expenditures relating to the Buffer Zone Protection Plan (BZZP) that was approved May 2, 2011 
per Resolution 11-288 and ammended on July 25, 2011 per Resolution 11-493.  A grant related supplement will replenish the holiday line item.

Sheriff Patrol

Current Expense

121

0000-101

CurrentUser
Text Box
r. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Auditor; File, Sheriff J. Thompson

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, SHERIFF PATROL
DEPARTMENT NUMBER 121.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that
2011 funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:
TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO:  

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)
521.210 3127 SWAT Supplies $398 521.210 3501 Small Item - Equipment $398

TOTAL $398 TOTAL $398
Explanation:

Prepared by: Julie Thompson Date:  15-Aug-2011

Approved Denied Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Line item transfer needed to properly code the expenditure relating to the cost of a Global Positioning System (GPS) unit to be used by members of 
the SWAT team.

Sheriff Patrol

Current Expense

121

0000-101

CurrentUser
Text Box
s. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 121



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Auditor; File, Sheriff J. Thompson

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, SHERIFF PATROL
DEPARTMENT NUMBER 121.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that
2011 funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.



CurrentUser
Text Box
t. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0126-101, Dept. 000







EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:
TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO:  

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)
521.210 3106 Operating Supplies $4,000 521.210 2105 Uniforms $4,000

TOTAL $4,000 TOTAL $4,000
Explanation:

Prepared by: Julie Thompson Date:  15-Aug-2011

Approved Denied Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Line item transfer needed to properly code the expenditures relating to additional uniform needs that would qualify to be coded out of the Sheriff 
Investigative Fund 0126-101.

Sheriff

Sheriff Investigative 

000

0126-101

CurrentUser
Text Box
u. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0126-101, Dept. 000



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Auditor; File,Sheriff J. Thompson

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
SHERIFF INVESTIGATIVE FUND NUMBER 0126-101, SHERIFF
DEPARTMENT NUMBER 000.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that
2011 funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.



CurrentUser
Text Box
v. Master Agreement w/Manatron, Inc. for Licensed Software, Hardware & Services









KENNEWICK IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

COST OF SERVICE STUDY

We keep the water moving…..

CurrentUser
Text Box
Kennewick Irrigation District Presentation on Cost of Service Rate Study – Charles Freeman



What is going on
� Still moving on average 155 MGD untreated Yakima River 

Water

� Still irrigating 20,201 acres

� Still delivering water to 22,768 customers

� New Management Team

� Environmental Constraints

� Legal Constraints

� How KID does Business
� Zero based budgeting. 

� 25% of late fees to helping hands

� Cost of service Study



Cost of Service Study – Why?
�BOD listened

� Assumptions:
� Assessments will reflect of the relative costs of serving 

different types of customers

� Rates will distribute (allocate) costs to the customers who 
benefit from the infrastructure that generates those costs

� Rate design should be supported by reliable data for an 
economical cost

� Different charges recover different infrastructure costs & 
customers pay only those charges that apply to their 
property.



APPROACH
� Budget Neutral - Not a revenue increase

� Study driven by policies

� Citizen Committee appointed

� Board hired an expert to conduct study

� Improves equity

� Defensible 

� A public process

� Board is listening to concerns from the rate payers



Policy Questions
� Should one class of customer subsidize another?

� How much of an impact has Urbanization of 
agricultural lands had on the district?

� What should be done with the federal subsidy of 
construction? Financing Costs?

� Should any changes to the rates (assessments) be 
phased in?

� Should some very small parcels be provided an 
exception?



IMPACT OF URBANIZATION
� Historical snapshot from 1960 to 2010 shows cost growth above 

inflation of 536% over about 50 years. Some but not all of this 
comes from adding new pipes and pumps. The remainder is due 
to growth in no. customers even when acreage is not increasing.

� With a fixed charge, the process of subdivision results in 
additional revenue to KID. Using the cost allocation model, we 
tested various scenarios until we found a percentage of 
infrastructure costs that, if assigned to the fixed charge, would 
make the increased revenue from subdivision approximately 
match the long-term impact of urbanization.

� That percentage was 60%.  In other words, if we recover 60% of 
our infrastructure costs from the fixed charge, KID will be able
to keep up with long-term cost pressures created by 
subdivision.



Myth Busters
� KID is making a profit

� Directors getting a raise

� Managers getting large raises

� KID won’t listen and do what it wants

� Rates are being changed to pay for red mountain



Going Forward
� Continued dialog with rate payers & wider community

� Adjusting policies to meet rate payer issues where 
practical

� Continue irrigation system upgrades that enhance 
efficiencies



Take Away
� KID is not increasing its budget as part of this project.

� KID is a member of this community and is sensitive to 
the fact that any change to the rates affect our 
neighbors.

� KID has done its homework.

� KID will continue to strive to balance the needs of our 
residential customers with those in the farming 
community.

� KID is leaner and hasn’t raised rates in two years. 





   
CCM 1.1 

 1

AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE:  August 23, 2011 
SUBJECT: Zoning Amendments, 
Repeals, and Official Zoning Maps 
MEMO DATE: August 16, 2011 
Prepared By: Susan M. Walker 
Reviewed By: Michael Shuttleworth 

TYPE OF ACTION 

NEEDED 

Execute Contract  
Pass Resolutions X 
Pass Ordinance X 
Pass Motion  X 
Other    

Consent Agenda  
Public Hearing  
1st Discussion  
2nd Discussion  
Other   X 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Washington State Growth Management Act (GMA) in RCW 36.70A.130 requires that 
counties and cities adopt zoning and other development regulations that are consistent 
with, and implement their adopted Comprehensive Plans.  The Benton County 2011 Zoning 
Update Program, established to meet this mandate, is now complete with the final adoption 
of new zoning districts, ordinances and maps amending Title 11 of the Benton County Code 
(BCC).  These new zoning districts and official zoning map are scheduled to take effect 
September 1, 2011. 
 
SUMMARY 
During the zoning adoption process, various districts and sections of the Benton County 
Code have been replaced by the newly adopted ordinances, and conflicting references to 
former districts in the existing code are in need of revision and update.  The attached 
ordinances are amendments to the existing code that repeal antiquated sections, correct 
code references, update district titles to reference the newly adopted districts, add new 
zoning definitions, include rapid charging stations in the Interchange Commercial District, 
and adopting the Benton County Official Zoning Map. 
 
The Benton County Planning Commission held two open record hearings to receive public 
testimony on the proposed ordinance amendments on July 12th and August 9th. The 
Planning Commission after discussion and consideration voted unanimously to recommend 
approval to the Board of County Commissioners of the ordinance amendments shown in 
Exhibits PCM 5.1 through PCM 6.2. 
 
STAFF REVIEW AND ANALYSIS: 
The following Exhibits PCM 5.1.1, through PCM 6.2, are a compendium of necessary 
amendments proposed for various chapters of the Benton County Code (BCC) to ensure the 
Code is internally consistent with the adoption of 2011 Zoning Update Program district 
ordinances. 
 
PCM 5.1.1 - BCC TITLE 11.18.060 & .070, Growth Management Act Agricultural District 
(GMAAD), an ordinance amending the titles and code provisions for Child Day Care 
Facilities and Home Occupations under the following sections: Uses requiring Permits--
Director Review and Approval, and Uses Requiring Permits--Conditional Use Permits. 
 
PCM 5.1.2 - BCC TITLE 11.20.040, Planned Development (PD) District, an ordinance 
correcting the Code number to find criteria for Home Occupations (d) under Uses 

 Page 1 of 135

CurrentUser
Text Box
Various Zoning Amendments – M Shuttleworth



   
CCM 1.1 

 2

Permitted. 
 
PCM 5.1.3 - BCC TITLE 11.65.030 & .040, Communication Facility criteria, an ordinance 
amending the exemption and development standards sections by updating with current 
names of the zoning districts; 
 
PCM 5.1.4 - BCC TITLE 16.10 Interim Growth Management regulations, repealing the 
entire chapter; 
 
PCM 5.1.5 - BCC TITLE 17.10.050 & .150, Permit Review Process, an ordinance amending 
the project permit application types by deleting and/or updating the current names of 
permit Types; adding communication facilities applications to the final decision criteria, 
short plat final decisions shall be made within 30 days, and attached communication 
facilities shall have a final decision within 90 days. 
 
PCM 5.1.6 - BCC TITLE 4.02 Adult Use Entertainment Businesses, an ordinance updating 
to remove planning/building affiliation to Planning, and amending the title with updated 
zoning district names; 
 
PCM 5.1.7 - BCC TITLE 11.52 relating to zoning, repealing BCC 11.52.070 and adding a 
new section to Chapter 11.52 setting criteria for non conforming uses, and amending the 
amendment procedure to change by ordinance the district boundary lines after holding 
open record hearings; 
 
PCM 5.1.8 - BCC TITLE 11 relating to the Zoning Ordinance of Benton County, an 
ordinance repealing the Residential, Suburban, Agricultural, Commercial, Interchange 
Commercial, Industrial District (I-1) and Industrial District (I-2), and the Parks and 
Recreation Areas; and Rural Estates District. 
 
PCM 5.1.9 – BCC TITLE 11.04 relating to zoning, and ordinance removing the repealed 
zoning districts, adding a new zoning district purpose, the establishment of districts and 
boundary maps and amending the definitions section to add or revise terms as determined 
throughout the Public Participation Process of the 2011 Zoning update Program. 
 
PCM 5.1.10 through PCM 5.1.15 - ORDINANCES 486, 487, 488, 489, 490 and 491, Child 
Day Care Facility, Type B, to correct code number reference; 
 
PCM 5.1.16- ORDINANCE 493, amending to include Rapid Charging Stations as an 
allowable use within the Interchange Commercial District (IC).  The Rapid Charging Station 
was unintentionally omitted from the adopted zoning district. 
 
PCM 6.1 ORDINANCE AMENDMENT TO BCC 3.16 Fire Code, an ordinance deleting the 
repealed districts names and adding the newly adopted zoning district names.  
 
PCM 6.2 ADDING A NEW SECTION TO BCC TITLE 11 adopting the Official Zoning Map of 

 Page 2 of 135



   
CCM 1.1 

 3

Benton County depicting the individual zone locations, boundaries and provisions 
associated with said Map.  In addition, the ordinance adopts all notations, references, data 
and other information shown thereon as a part of Title 11 and setting requirements for the 
revision, replacement and retention of such maps. 
 
SEPA 
(Exhibit PCM SEPA) The ordinance amendments and official zoning map was reviewed 
under the requirements of the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA), and a determination 
of Non-Significance was issued June 23, 2011.  As development regulations these 
proposals are “non-project actions” per WAC 197-11-704(b).  “Non-project actions” such as 
the proposed are by their nature and large area of applicability not amenable to site 
specific and detailed environmental impact analysis.  Accordingly, any future site specific 
projects that may be proposed on lands that are subject to this proposed ordinance will be 
reviewed for environmental impacts under the County’s SEPA procedures, and where 
applicable its Critical Resources Protection Ordinance, and Shorelines Plan. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

It is the recommendation of the Benton County Planning Commission and Planning Staff, that 
the Board of County Commissioners approve and adopt the ordinance amendments shown in 
PCM 5.1 through PCM 6.2, that are necessary to update the Benton County Code, which 
includes adoption of the Official Zoning Map with the location and boundaries of the various 
districts adopted during the 2011 Zoning Update Program.  The Planning Commission and 
staff believe these actions are necessary to bring Benton County Code into compliance with 
the goals and policies of the adopted Benton County Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 
 
MOTION  
After consideration of the information received at the public meeting on August 23rd, 2011, 
the Board adopt a motion to approve the amendments proposed in PCM 5.1 through PCM 
6.2, to be effective September 1, 2011, and adopt the Planning Commission’s findings of 
fact as their own, and sign prepared Resolution saying the same. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
No fiscal impacts have been identified regarding this planning proposal. 

 Page 3 of 135


	Web Packet 082311.pdf
	Agenda Minutes 081611
	CA - BOE a
	CA - Commissioners b
	CA - Commissioners c
	8-23-11 AC line item transfer
	8-23-11 AC line item transfer.pdf

	CA - Facilities d
	CA - Human Services e
	CA - Human Services f
	CA - Human Servies g
	CA - Juvenile h
	CA - Juvenile i
	CA - Public Works j
	CA - Public Works k
	CA - Sheriff l
	CA - Sheriff m
	CA - Sheriff n
	CA - Sheriff o
	CA - Sheriff p
	Form 
	Resolution
	Funds
	Notes

	CA - Sheriff q
	CA - Sheriff r
	Form  (2)
	Resolution (2)
	Form 
	Resolution
	Funds
	Notes

	CA - Sheriff s
	Form 
	Resolution
	Funds
	Notes

	CA - Sheriff t
	CA - Sheriff u
	Form 
	Resolution
	Funds
	Notes

	CA - Treasurer v
	Timed - KID
	Timed - Zoning Amendments
	Repeal Ord Exhibit Master List
	BOCC AG 8-23-11misc ords
	PC Findings Misc Ords
	PCM 5
	PCM 5.1.1
	PCM 5.1.2
	PCM 5.1.3
	PCM 5.1.4
	PCM 5.1.5
	PCM 5.1.6
	PCM 5.1.7
	PCM 5.1.8
	PCM 5.1.9
	PCM 5.1.10
	PCM 5.1.11
	PCM 5.1.12
	PCM 5.1.13
	PCM 5.1.14
	PCM 5.1.15
	PCM 5.1.16
	PCM 5
	PCM 6
	PCM SEPA




